
   
. 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

 

 
AGENDA  

 
RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING  

 
REGULAR MEETING 

March 9, 2016 
9:00 a.m. 

 
 

Retirement Board Conference Room 
The Willows Office Park 

1355 Willow Way, Suite 221 
Concord, California 

THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING: 
 

1.  Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

2.  Accept comments from the public. 
 

3.  Approve minutes from the January 13, 2016 Board meeting. 
  
4.  Routine items for March 9, 2016. 

 
a. Approve certifications of membership. 
b. Approve service and disability allowances. 
c. Accept disability applications and authorize subpoenas as required. 
d. Approve death benefits. 
e. Accept Asset Allocation Report 

 
CLOSED SESSION 
 

5.  The Board will continue in closed session to consider the Hearing Officer’s recommendation 
regarding the disability application for David Reese.  
 

6.  CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 
        (Government Code Section 54957.6) 
 
        Agency designated representatives: 
        Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer 

Christina Dunn, Admin/HR Manager 
Joe Wiley, CCCERA’s Chief Negotiator 
 
Employee Organization: AFSCME Local 2700 
Unrepresented Employees: All CCCERA unrepresented positions 

 
7.  CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR 

        (Government Code Section 54957.6) 
 
        Agency designated representative: 
        Joe Wiley, CCCERA’s Chief Negotiator 

Unrepresented Employee: Chief Executive Officer 
 

  



   
. 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

  
  
  
8.  The Board will continue in closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54956.9(d)(4) to confer 

with legal counsel regarding the initiation of litigation (one case). 
 

OPEN SESSION 
 

9.  Consider and take possible action to:  
a. Determine whether panel management pay is pensionable compensation for four 

physicians who retired prior to 2013.  
b. Provide direction on recovery of pension overpayments. 

 
10.  Presentation from staff and Adams Street regarding proposed Adams Street Venture Innovation 

Fund commitment. 
 

11.  Consider and take possible action to commit to Adams Street Venture Innovation Fund. 
 

12.  Consider and take possible action to cancel the March 17, 2016 meeting. 
 

13.  Miscellaneous 
a. Staff Report 
b. Outside Professionals’ Report  
c. Trustees’ comments 

 
 

 



 
 

 
MINUTES 

 
RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

January 13, 2016 
9:00 a.m. 

 

Retirement Board Conference Room 
The Willows Office Park 

1355 Willow Way, Suite 221 
Concord, California 

 
 
Present: Debora Allen, Candace Andersen, Scott Gordon, Brian Hast, Jerry Holcombe, Louie 

Kroll, John Phillips, William Pigeon, Gabe Rodrigues, Todd Smithey, Jerry Telles and 
Belinda Zhu 

 
Absent: Russell Watts 
 
Staff: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer; Timothy Price, Chief Investment Officer; Karen 

Levy, General Counsel; Wrally Dutkiewicz, Compliance Officer; Tim Hoppe, Retirement 
Services Manager; Alexis Cox, Member Services Manager; and Christina Dunn, 
Administrative/HR Manager 

 
Outside Professional Support: Representing: 

Harvey Leiderman   Reed Smith LLP 
Susan Hastings  Laughlin, Falbo, Levy & Moresi LLP 
 

 
1. Pledge of Allegiance 

Smithey led all in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Accept comments from the public 

No members of the public offered comment. 

3. Routine Items 

It was M/S/C to approve the routine items of the January 13, 2016 meeting. (Yes: Allen, Andersen, 
Hast, Holcombe, Kroll, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey and Zhu) 

Gordon, Pigeon and Telles were present for subsequent discussion and voting. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 

The Board moved into closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957.6, 54957 and 54956.9(d)(1). 
 

The Board moved into open session. 
 

4. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 
(Government Code Section 54957.6) 



Page 2 
January 13, 2016 

 

 

Agency designated representative: 
Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer 
Unrepresented Employees: All CCCERA unrepresented positions 
 
There was no reportable action related to Govt. Code Section 54957.6. 
 

5. It was M/S/C to accept the Medical Advisor’s recommendation and grant the following disability 
benefits: 

a. Lori Currie – Non-service Connected  (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, Hast, Phillips, Rodrigues, 
Smithey, Telles and Zhu)  

 
6. This item was referred back to the Hearing Officer for further proceedings with instructions. 

7. It was M/S/C to adopt the report and recommendation of the Administrative Law Judge and deny 
Lawrence Nunes’ petition to have his application accepted as filed. (Yes: Allen, Andersen, Gordon, 
Hast, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Zhu) 

8. This item was referred back to the Hearing Officer for further proceedings with instructions. 

9. There was no reportable action related to Govt. Code Section 54956.9(d)(1). 

Andersen, Gordon, Kroll and Pigeon were no longer present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

10. Presentation from McLagan regarding CCCERA investment employee compensation 

Strohl introduced Mike Oak of the McLagan firm. 

Oak gave a brief background of the McLagan firm. He gave an overview of the analysis used to 
complete the investment employee compensation study.  He reviewed the types of organizations used 
in the study and the current market salaries for the Chief Investment Officer, Investment Officer and 
Investment Analyst positions. 

Rodrigues was no longer present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

11. Consider and take possible action to adopt McLagan’s recommended salary adjustment 

Price reviewed the comparisons of dollars spent on outside consultants and the need to retain 
experienced staff especially with the changes made to the asset allocation.  He also discussed the 
duties of the investment analysts noting they are mostly doing the work of an investment officer. 

It was M/S/C to continue a decision on this item until the next meeting in January and to deal with all 
of the personnel adjustments at the same time.  (Yes: Allen, Hast, Holcombe, Phillips, Smithey, Telles 
and Zhu) 

12. Consider and take possible action to authorize the CEO to execute a contract with Segal 
Consulting for the annual member benefit statements 

Strohl reported Segal Consulting has produced the annual member benefit statements for CCCERA in 
the previous years. She noted this item is coming to the Board because of the dollar amount of the 
contract. 

It was M/S/C to authorize the CEO to execute a contract with Segal Consulting for the annual member 
benefit statements in an amount not to exceed $70,000. (Yes: Allen, Hast, Holcombe, Phillips, 
Smithey, Telles and Zhu) 



Page 3 
January 13, 2016 

 

 

Hast was no longer present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

13. Update from the Compliance Officer 

Dutkiewicz gave an update on compliance activities. 

14. Consider and take possible action to move the January 28, 2016 meeting to January 27, 2016. 

It was M/S/C to move the January 28, 2016 meeting to January 27, 2016 with a start time of 8:30 a.m. 
(Yes:  Holcombe, Phillips, Smithey, Telles and Zhu.  No: Allen) 
 

15. Consider authorizing the attendance of Board and/or staff: 

a. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 2 Board members at the Trustees’ Roundtable, 
CALAPRS, February 5, 2016, Burbank, CA. (Yes: Allen, Holcombe, Phillips, Smithey, Telles 
and Zhu) 

b. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of all Board members and 5 staff members at the 
CALAPRS General Assembly, CALAPRS, March 5-8, 2016, Indian Wells, CA. (Yes: Allen, 
Holcombe, Phillips, Smithey, Telles and Zhu) 

c. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 1 Board member at the Investment Basics, IFEBP, 
February 15-18, 2016, San Diego, CA. (Yes: Allen, Holcombe, Phillips, Smithey, Telles and 
Zhu) 

d. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 1 Board member at the Retirement Plan Basics, 
IFEBP, February 19-20, 2016, San Diego, CA. (Yes: Allen, Holcombe, Phillips, Smithey, 
Telles and Zhu) 

16. Miscellaneous 

(a) Staff Report – 
 

Strohl reported CCCERA received a Certificate of Excellence from GFOA for the 2014 PAFR; 
and, CCCERA employees participated in a 1-year independence celebration. 
 
Price reported John Angelo of Angelo Gordon passed away on January 1 noting there is no 
immediate impact on the strategies we are invested in; he gave an update on the Energy Credit 
Fund with Angelo Gordon; First Eagle received an inquiry from the Department of Labor noting 
there is no immediate impact on CCCERA; and, Ed Hoffman from Verus will be at the next 
meeting. 
 
Levy reported she will be chairing the next CALAPRS attorneys’ roundtable and is lining up 
topics and speakers for the five hour mandatory continuing legal education, including one hour of 
ethics education. 
 
Dunn reported she distributed the elimination of recourse statements for the fiduciary insurance, 
we processed our first CCCERA payroll on January 8th; we are looking to streamline the Board 
member travel process and new forms have been created. 
 
Dutkiewicz gave an update on separating IT from the County and now have all the user requests 
for the Secure File Transfer site noting everything is going smoothly. 
 
Hoppe reported staff is working on the 1099R Forms. 

 
(b) Outside Professionals’ Report -    

 



Page 4 
January 13, 2016 

 

 

None 
 

(c) Trustees’ comments – 
 

None 
 
 
 

 
It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting.  (Yes: Allen, Holcombe, Phillips, Smithey, Telles and Zhu) 
 
 
 
 
             
John Phillips, Chairman     Scott Gordon, Secretary 
 
 



.. , T 

CONTRA COSTA COUN1Y EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 
Me"eting Date 
03/09/16 

Agenda Item 
#4 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

Page 1 March 9, 2016 

Items requiring Board Action 

A. Certifications of Membership - see list and classification forms. 

B •. Se/Vice and Disability Retirement Allowances: 
Effective Option 

Name Number Date I¥Qe Group Selected 
carlson, Gregory 56542 12/18/2015 SR S/A Unmod 
Cruz, Arturo 63683 1/4/2014 NSCD lier II &m Unmod 
Geyfman, Viktor 68519 12/01/15 SR l1erID Unmod 

Harris, Deborah D3406 12/02/15 SR lier I Unmod 
Henley, David 45214 12/31/15 SR S/A Unmod 
Hightower, Monica 65479 12/15/15 SR lier II & III Unmod 
Kennedy, Kathryn 67485 11/23/15 SR lier III Unmod 
Michalczyk, Bert D3406 11/03/15 SR lier I Unmod 
Phillips, Thomas 03406 10/30/15 SR lier 1 Unmod 

Quatman, Phyllis 45785 11/01/15 SR lier II Unmod 
Salditos, Angelina 47967 11/01/15 SR lier II &111 Unmod 
Shafigh, Niloufar 4n25 11/30/15 SR lier 1 Unmod 
Spinner, Geoff 74018 12/02/15 SR SIA Unmod 
Walker-Shepard, Delvin 61581 10/31/15 SR lier II & III Unmod 
Wang, Michael 45865 12/01/15 SR . S/A Unmod 
Woloshin, Diane 56632 12/01/15 SR lier I Unmod 

c. Disability Retirement Applications: The Board's Hearing Officer is hereby authorized to 
issue SUbpoenas in the following cases involving disability applications: 

Name Number Filed Type 

Pedone, Christine 37562 01/29/16 SCD 

Trujillo Daniel 62474 02/03/16 NSCD. 

Sublett, Michele D9990 02/24/16 SCD 

D. Deaths: 

Name Date gf Death Emplo¥er as of Date Of Death 

Anderson, Zar 1/28/2016 Contra Costa County 

Baldino, Margaret 2/17/2016 Beneficary 

Blythe, lawrence 2/16/2016 Contra Costa County 

Brown, Elizabeth 
r~ 

217/2016 Contra Costa County Housing Authority 

KEY: GmYIl 
1== Tter I 

II == TrerII 
m ==T.erID 

S/A = Safety TIer A 
,..',.._r~ ... ·"'T"':_'" '" 

QJmm 
* = County Advance 
Selected w/optjon 

lmI 
NSP = Non-Spedfied 

SCD = ServIce Disabnlty 
SR = Service Retirement 

NSD I: Non-Service DisabiJity 



CONTRA COSTA COUNlY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOaATlON 

Page 2 

Buckhalt, John 

Butler, Mack 

Canale, Frederick 

Cox, Judith 

Desmond, Lois 

Rsher, Dennis 

Glossman, Janice 

Howes, Garry 

Jamison, Lucy 

Mackenzie, Carol 

Mason, Marian 

Mazariegos, Kathleen 

McGill, Katherine 

Miner, Wayne 

Norgaard, Robyn 

Parish, Errol 

Roberts, Nancy 

Shackleton, Ardis 

Stokes, Joseph 

Yaley, Barbara 

KEY: !iI:mlR 
. I=1lerI 

n=TIerIT 
m= TlE!rm 

S/A = Safety Tier A 
SIC = Safety TIer C 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

~ 
* = County Advance 
Selected w/opHon 

1/31/2016 

2/20/2016 

1/31/2016 

1/19/2016 

2/23/2016 

1/17/2016 

1/13/2016 

1/31/2016 

2/12/2016 

1/8/2016 

2/7/2016 
1/28/2016 

2/12/2016 

2/22/2016 

1/7/2016 

1/3/2016 

1/24/2016 
2/15/2016 

2/13/2016 

2/22/2016 

Contra Costa County 

Beneficary 

Contra Costa County 

Beneficary 

Contra Costa County 

Contra Costa County 

Contra Costa County 

Contra Costa County 

Beneficary 

Contra Costa County 

Contra Costa County 

Contra Costa Col:lnty 

Contra Costa County 

March 9, 2016 

Central Contra Costa Sanitary District 

Contra Costa County Housing Authority 

Contra Costa County 

Contra Costa County 

Contra Costa County 

Contra Costa County 

Contra Costa County 

:rmc 
NSP = Non-Specified 

SCD = ServIce DIsability 
SR = Service Retirement 

NSD = Non-Service Disability 



. . • t • .. 

Name 

Alarcon-Newrider, Brigida 

Alinsod, Czarnie 
Andal, Jason 
Barrientos, Sakura 
Baru, Paresh 
Bradley, DivinitY 
Brown, Mitchell 
Burch, Beth 
Carrera, Maria 
Castellon, Francisco 
Castelluccio, Cody 
Chavis, Grace 
Chebotarev, Dennis 
Chenard, Stephanie 
Cogo, Anthony 
Collignon, Jessica 
Connolly, Angelita 
Crisostomo, Leslie 
Crockett, Lorece 
Crosse, Noell 
Dadnia, Patrick 
Dagcuta, Susan Grace 
Dang, Jeremy 
Danko, Zsuzsanna 
De La Cruz, Reyna 

. Dearman, Kaprisha 

Dela Cruz, Karen 
Denny, Bruce 
Dickerson, Shannon 
Droege, Jessica 
Dugan, Matthew 
Es parza, Jill i an 
Feeney-, Michelle 
Fernandez, Jenelle 
Fontanilla, Maricar 
Frost, Rochelle 
Galande, Michael 
Garcia, Victor 
Giacalone1 Silvana 

I = Tier I 
JI=TierU. 
rn-TIerm 

CERTIFICATION OF MEMBERSHIPS 

Meeting Date 
03/09/16 

Agenda Item 
#4a. 

Employee Membership 
Number Tier Date Employer 

81749 P5.2 12/01/15 Contra Costa County 
81947 P5.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 

82706 P5.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
82742 P5.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa Cou nty 
82770 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
82794 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
82714 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
80075 PS.2 12/01/15 Contra Costa Cou nty 
82697 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
82699 P5.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
82795 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
82746 PS.2, 01/01/16 Contra Costa Cou nty 
03406 I 01/01/16 Central Contra Costa Sanitary District 
82718 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
82793 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
82750 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
81219 P5.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
82722 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
09990 P4.3- 12/01/15 Contra Costa County Housing Authority 
6913.4 25.2- 12/01/1S Contra Costa County 
82698 P5.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
82744 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
82792 . PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
82791 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
78609 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 

82752 PS.2 01/01./16 Contra Costa County 
82715 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
82790 Ps.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
82719 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa Cou nty 
82765 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
82789 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
82788 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
82080 SID 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
82749 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
82631 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
82721 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
82786 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
82736 S/E 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
82776 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 

Key:-

P4.2 = PEPRA Tier 4 (2% COLA) StA = sar~ Tier A 
2'4.3 = PEPM TIer 4 (3% COLA) SIC = Safety Tier C 
PS.2 = PEPRA TIer 5 (1% COLA) SID := Safety Tier D 
PS.3 = PURA Tier S (3% COLA) SIE =: Safety Tier E 



CERTIFICA TION OF fllJEMBERSHIPS 

Employee Membership 
Name Number TIe.r Date Employer 

Goode, Rima 82692 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa Coun_ty 

Green, janessa 82713 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 

G riffi n III, Willi am 78466 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 

Gustafson, Lisa 82717 PS.2 Ol/01/16 Contra Costa County 

Gutierrez Rodriguez, Miguel 8278S PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 

Haley, Kenneth 82784 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 

Haran, Spencer 82783 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa Cou nty 

Harvey, Brent 03406 P4.3 01/01/16 Central Contra Costa Sanitary District 

Henn, Heather 76955 P5.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 

Hernandez, Matthew 82782 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
Hiteshew, Timothy 03406 P4.3 01/01/16 Central Contra Costa Sanitary District 

Ho,laokeng 82688 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 

Holtz, Cody 82209 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 

lIan, Heidi Anne 8270.7 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
jimenez, Mario 82771 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 

Keeton, Taroyl 09S00 PS.3 01/01/16 Superior Court of CA County of Contra Costa 

Koerber, Randall 09S00 PS.3 01/01/16 Superior Court of CA County of Contra Costa 
Kurpinsky, Karen 80208 PS.2 01/01/16 fContra Costa County 
Lapating, Keith 81992 P5-.2 01/01/16 -Contra Costa County 

Lee, Kristine 82743 - P5.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa Cou nty 

Lee, Paris 09990 P4.3 01/01/16 Contra Costa County Housing Authority 
Li, Vedder 82781 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
Lobao, Ejitu 82733 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa Cou nty 

Lucero, Vincent 82796 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 

Maka, Sonasi 82797 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 

Martin, Helen 82704 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 

Marti n, Leah 80745 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 

Mc Cardle, Garth S1158 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa Cou nty 

McElley, Shane 03406 P4.3 01/01/16 Central Contra Costa Sanitary District 
Messerer, Mark 82720 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 

Miller, Cheryl 82169 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 

Moreno, Karla 82740 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 

Mullings, Robert 82798 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 

Navarro, Aguido 77399 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 

Nguyen, Bach Vien 82639 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
Nguyen, Trung 03406 P43 01/01/16 - Central Contra Costa Sanitary District 
Drsi, joseph 82799 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 

Perez, Rebecca 82701 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 

Perotti, Helen 81S61 SID 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 

Key: 
I=TierJ P4.2 = PEP-RA Tier 4 (2% COLA) SlA = Safeh' Tier A 
1.1 = Tier II P4.3-= PErRA TIer 4 (3% COLA) SIC = Safety Tier C 
m=TIerm -PS.l = PEPRA TierS (%% COLA) SID = Safety Tier D 

PS..3 -= PEPRA TIer S (3% COLA) SIE == Safety Tier E 



. , . , 

CERTIFICATION OF MEMBERSHIPS 

Employee Membership 
Name Number Tier Date Employer 

Pham, Tiffany 8274S PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 

Polido, Tlffany 7972S PS.3 12/01/15 Contra Costa County 
Rainwater, Maria D9990 P4.3 08/01/15 Contra Costa County Housing Authority 

Ramirez, Juan D9S00 PS.3 01/01/16 Superior Court of CA County of Contra Costa 
Richardson, Michelle 82741 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
Rojas, Dennis 81413 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
Roth, Sonya 82694 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
Rowland, Kyle 82801 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
Rubio, Gia 82710 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa Cou nty 
Rubio-Aliaga, Rebecca 82739 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 

Saelaw, Maet}l 82633 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
Saidi, Ali 63442 III 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 

Schmidt, Amanda D3406 P4.3 01/01/16 Central Contra Costa Sanitary District 
Schwaab, Ian 82805 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa County 
Shaw, Ryan 82804 PS.2 01/01/16 Contra Costa Cou nty 

- Key: 
I=TierI P4.2 = PEPRA TIer 4 (2% COLA) SlA = Safebt Tier A 
IJ = Tier II P4.3 = PEPRA Tier 4(3% COLA) SIC = Saf~ty TIer C 
m=TIerm PS.2 = PEPRA Tier S (1% COLA) SID = Safety Tier D 

PS.3 = PEPRA. TIer 5 (l% COLA) stE = Safety Tier E 

Page 3 



· ' 

TIER CHANGES 

Employee. Old New Effective 
Name Number Tier Tier Date Employer Reason for Change 

Allen, Tamara 82518 P5.2 III 11/1/2015 Contra Costa County Reciprocity 

Tyner, Kristen 82047 P5.2 III 8/1/2015 Contra Costa County Reciprocity 

.Peddycord, Daniel 82058 P5.2 III 9/1/2015 Contr.a Costa County Reciprocity 

Rojo, Rachel 81716 P5.2 III 7/1/2015 Contra Costa County Reciprocity 

Tougeron, Christopher 81814 S/E S/A 7/1/2015 Contra Costa County Reciprocity 

key: 
I=TierI P4.2 = PErRA Tier 4 (20/0 COLA) SlA = Safetv Tier A 
II = Tier Il P4.3 = PErRA Tier 4 (3% COLA) SIC = Safety Tier C 
'm==T'rerm P5.2 = PEPRA Tier S (2% COLA) SID == Safety Tier D 

PS.3 = PEPRA Tier S (3% COLA) SIE I:: Safety Tier E 

Pcme 4 



ASSET ALLr -rION 
Current Assets (MA~ •• et Value) 

56,948,035,000 
Reporting Month End: January 31, 2016 
Prepared By: Chlb"Chi Cbu 

Robeco '/ 
Jackson Sfbare Partners Ilka Delaware. 
Emerald Advisprs ... , --------. 

Intech (Cote) 
PIMCO Stocks+ Absolute R.t~n 
Cered~x 

Total Domestic Equity 
Pyrford (BMO) 
WllUam :Plair 

Total International 'Equity 
..l,PMorgan Global Opportunities 
First Eagle 
Artisan Global Opportunities 
InteC:lh (Global Low Volatility) 

Total Global Equity 
Total Equity 

AFL-CIO Housing Investment Trust 
PIMCO Total Return 
GSAM "Park" Portfolio 
Goldman Sachs ABBet Management 
Lord Abbett 
Torchlight Debt Opportunity Funds 

Total Domestic Fixed In~ome 
Lazard Asset Management 

Total Global Fixed Income 

MeetIng Date 
03/09/16 
Agenda Item 

#4e. 

AUianz Global Investors (fka Nicholas Applegate) 

Total High Yield Fixed Income 
Wellington Real Total Return . 
PIMCO All Asset 
Private Real Asset 

Total Real Asset 
Total Real Estate 
Total Alternative Investments 

County Treasurer 
State Street Bank 

Total Cash & Equivalents 
Total Maiket Opportunities 

TOTAL ASSETS 

UNDER REVIEW: 
Nogales Investors" Performance, Board Action OS/28/08 

I 

A B 

% of Target 
I 

Target Assets 

4.3% 298,765,505 
4.3% 298,765,505 
3.0% 208,441,050 
4.0% 277,921,400 
4.0% 277,921,400 
3.0% 208L441 050 

22.6% 1,570,255,910 
5.3% 368,245,855 
5.3% 368245855 
10.6% 736,491,710 
4.0% 277,921,400 
4.0% 277,921,400 
4.0% ;Z77,921,400 
0.3% 20844,105 
12.3% 8!;i4,608,305 

4~.5% 3,161,355,925 
3.3% 229,285,155 
5.6% 889,089,960 
0.0% 0 
4.6% 319,609,610 
4.6% 319,609,610 

,1.9% 13~012,665 

20.0% 1,389,607,000 
4.0% 277,921400 

24.0% 1,667,528,400 
5.0% 347,401,750 

5.0% 347,401,750 
0.8% 52,110,263 
1.8% 121,590,613 
2.5% 173,700,875 

5.0% 347,401,750 

12.5% 868,504,375 

7.0% 486,362,450 

0.5% 34,740,175 

0.5% 34,740,175 

100.0% 6,948,035,000 

1 

I. 
C D C-B D·A 

Market Actual Over OVer 
Value Asset. (Under) (Under) Range 

279,241,000 4.02% ( 19,524,505) (0.28%) 
299,020,000 4.30% 254,,495 0.00% 
176,119,000 2.53% (32,322,050) (0.47%) 
281,201,000 4.05% 3,279,600 0.05% 
217,121,000 3.12% (60,800,400) (0.88%) 
193,100000 2.78% (15,341,050) (0.22%) 

1,445,802,000 20.81% (124,453,910) (1.79%) 
354,045,000 5.10% (14,200,855) (0.20%) 
345437,000 4.97% (22,808,855) (0.33%) 
699,482,000 10.07% (37,009,710) (0.53%) 
248,489,000 3.58% (29,432,400) (0.42%) 
277,270,000 3.99% (651,400) (0.01%) 

I 268,274,000 3.86% (9,647,400) (0.14%) 
22,060000 0.32% 1215,895 0.02% ! 

816,093,000 11.75% (38,515,305) (0.55%) 

2,961,377,000 42.62% (199,978,925) (2.88%) 40% TO 55% 
229,835,000 3.31% 549,845 0.01% 
408,761,000 5.88% 19,671,040 0.28% 

4,000 0.00% 4,000 0.00% 
338,098,000 4.87% 18,488,390 0.27% 
335,337,000 4.83% 15,727,390 0.23% 
122828000 1.77% (9,184,665) (0.13%) 

1,434,863,000 20.65% 45,256,000 0.65% 
289276,000 4.16% 11354,600 0.16% 

1,724,139,000 24.81% 56,610,600 0.81% 20% TO 30% 
324,832000 4.68% (22,569 750) (0.32%) 

324,832,000 4.68% (22,569,750) (0.32%) 2% TO 9% 
188,818,000 2.72% 136,707,738 1.97% 
113,324,000 1.63% (8,266,613) (0.12%) 
59271,000 0.85% (114,429,875) (1.65%) 

361,413,000 5.20% 14,011,250 0.20% 0% TO 10% 

892,066,000 12.84% 23,561,625 0.34% 10% TO 16% 

604,842,000 8.71% 118,479,550 1.71% 5% TO 12% 

- 0.00% 
41370,000 0.60% 

41,370,000 0.60% 6,629,825 0.10% 0% TO 1% 

37,996,000 0.55% 3,255,825 0.05% 0% TO 5% 

6,948,035,000 100% 0 0% 



REAL BSTATB I1'fVB8TltmNTB Inoeptlon 
Date 

DLJ Real Elltate Capital partnen. L.P. II 07/31/99 
DLJ Real Elltate Capital partnen. L.P. m 06/30/06 
DLJ Real Estate Capital Partnen. !t.P. IV 12/31/07 
DLJ Real Estate Capital Partnen. L.P. V 07/31/13 
Hearthstone Partners II 06/17/9& 
Invesoo IREI' I 10/22/03 
mveaoo lUI' II 06/30/07 
Inveaao IREI'm 08/01/13 
lnveaao IREI' IV 12/01114 
Long Wharll'REG II 07/18/03 
Long Wharf' I'RBG m 03130/07 
Long Wharf 1I'RBG IV 08/14/13 
Oaktree Real Estate Opportubltlea l'und V 12/16/11 
Oaktree Real Estate Opporiunltl",a Fund VI 09/30113 
Oaktree Real Bstate Opportunities Fund vn 02/28/15 
Sipier Gulf Distreaaed Real Bstate Opp. had 12/31/11 
Siguter OufI'Dlstre.sed Real Estate Opp. Fund Il 08/31/13 
Siguler OufI'Dt.tre.aed Real Elltate Opp. II Co-l 01/31/16 
Paulaon Real Estate Fund II 11/10/13 
Angelo Gordon Realty l'und VIII 12/31/11 
Angelo Gordon Realty Fund IX 10/10/14 
LaSalle taaome & (kowth Fund VI 01/31/12 
Adelante Capital MlUULlEelDent (REITJ 
:mvBSCO International KEIT 
WWows Omae: $lP,774.100 *H-

Private Real Estate Alternative Investments 
As of January 31, 2016 

Target #I of DIsoretlon New Target Funding 
Termination Extension by GP/LP Termination Commitment 

07/31/09 3rd2YR LP 6/30/2016 40,000,000 
06130114 18t2 YR OP 6130/2016 75,000,000 
09130/16 100,000,000 
12131122 75,000,000 
12/31/09 6,250,000 
04130/11 3rd 1 YR OP 4/30/2014 50,000,000 
12/31/16 85,000,000 
08/01/20 35,000,000 
12101121 35,000,000 
02/28/12 l'lOTDJl:1I' LP 12/31/2014 50,000,000 
121301115 75,000,000 
09/30/21 25,000,000 
12/31/16 50,000,000 
09/30/20 80,000,000 
02/28/23 65,000,000 
12131116 75,000,000 
08/31/20 70,000,000 
01/31/23 25,000,000 
11/10/20 20,000,000 
12/31/18 80,000,000 
10/10/22 65,000,000 
01/31/19 75,000,000 

0 
0 
0 

Market 
Value 

3,010,000 
45,351,000 
80,933,000 
41,561,000 

(38,0001 
6,187,000 

17,913,000 
22,953,000 
11,228,000 

794,000 
12,887,000 
24,459,000 
48,332,000 
99,415,000 

0 
73,667,000 
42,329,000 

5,564,000 
20,213,000 
66,724,000 

3,088,000 
91,111,000 

112,066,000 
52,319,000 
10000000 

nil Purchase price $10,600,000 plus acquisition cost and fees $174,100. 1,361,260,000 892066000 

PRIVATE DEBT lNVESTMBKTS 

Torahllght Debt Opportunity Fund D 
Torchlight Debt Opportunity Fund m 
Torchlight Debt Opportunity Fund IV 
Torohllght Debt Opportunity Fund V 

Outstanding Commitments 
Total 

Inoeption Target 
Date Termination 

09/28106 09/30/16 
09/30/08 09/30/16 
08/01112 08/30/20 
12L31114 09117/22 

outstanding Commitments 
Total 

f# of 
Extension 

Dlaoretlon l'iewTaraet 
by GP/I,P Termination 

361,079,000 
727,681,000 1,253,145,000 

FUnding MarKet 
Commitment Value 

128,000,000 54,730,000 
75,000,000 10,309,000 
60,000,000 54,004,000 
75,000000 3785000 

L---_ 338,000,900 _ l~!~~,OOJL 
71,260,000 

194,078,000 

%or Outstanding 
Total Asset Commitment 

0.04% 
0.65% 18,958,000 
1.16% 19,476,000 
0.60% 39,072,000 
0.00% 

.0.09% 
0.26% 
0.33% 20,305,000 
0.16% 24,315,000 
0.01% 
0.19% 
0.35% 0 
0.70% 
1.43% 5,682,000 
0.00% 65,000,000 
1.06% 13,243,000 
0.61% 48,015,000 
0.08% 19,436,000 
0.29% 3,574,000 
0.96% 18,145,000 
0.04% 61,912,000 
1.31% 3,946,000 
1.61% 
0.75% 
0.14% 

12.84% 361,079,000 

"'" of Outlltancung I 

Total Asset Commitment 
0.79% 
0.15% 
0.78% 0 
0.05% 71250000 
1.TI"AI 71,260,000 



AL'I'ERlfATIVB INVESTMENTS 

Adams Street Partners 
Adams $treet Secondary n 
Adams Street Secondary V 
Pathway 
Pathway 2008 
Pathway & 
Pathw!ly7 
Pathway 8 
Siguler Guf( CCCERA Opportunities 
EIFUSPFI 
EIFUSPlI'n 
EIFUSPFm 
EIFUSPFIV 
NogtiesInvestment 
Bay Area Equity Fund 
Bay Area Equity Fund n 
Paladinm 
Carpenter Community BanoFund 
Ooean Avenue Fund U 

MARKET OPPORTUl'llTIES 

Outree Private Investment Fund 2009 
Angelo Gordon Energy Credit Opportunities 

REAL ASSET INVESTMENTS 

Commont'und Capital Natural ReBouroes IX 
Wastewater Opportunity Fund 
Aether m & m Surplus 

Private Real Estate Alt, (tive Investments 

Inoeption Target 
Date Termination 
12/22/96 INDEFINITE 
12/31/08 12/31/20 
10/31/12 10/31/22 
11/09/98 05/31/21 
12/26/08 12/26/23 
OS/24/11 OS/24/26 
02/07/13 02/07/23 
11/23/15 11/23/25 
06/03/14 05/31/25 
11/08/02 11/08/12 
06/15/05 06/15/15 
02/28/07 02/28/17 
06/28/10 06/28/20 
02/15/04 02/18/14 
06/14/04- 01/15/13 
2/29/09 12/31/17 

11/30/07 12/31/17 
01/31/08 f)1/31/16 
06/11/14 05/31/24 

Outstanding Commitment. 
Total 

Inception Target 
Date Termination 
02/28/10 01/31/17 
09/10/15 09/10/20 

Outstanding Commitments 
Total 

Inception Target 
Date Termination 
06/30/13 06/30/20 
12/31/16 11/30/22 
11/30/13 11/30/20 

Outstanding Commitment. 
Total 

As of January..,l, 2016 

t# of Discretion KewTarget Funding 
Extension by GP/LP Termination Commitment 

180,000,000 
30,000,000 
40,000,000 

125,000,000 
30,000,000 
40,000,000 
70,000,000 
50,000,000 

200,000,000 
3ni lYR LP 11/08/15 30,000,000 

50,000,000 
65,000,000 
50,000,000 

Bold lallt tnv. 15,000,000 
lat 2 YR LP 1/15/2015 10,000,000 

10,000,000 
25,000,000 
30,000,000 
30000 000 

l,()8,!,Q!)O,()J)9 

t# of Disoretion New Tarlet Funding 
Extension by GP/LP Termination Commitment 

40,000,000 
75 000 000 

115000,000 

, of Discretion New Tarlet Fundinl 
Extension by GP/LP Termination Commitment 

50,000,000 
25,000,000 
75000 000 

150000000 

Market value column is the latest endJng quarter plus any additional capital calls alter the ending quarter. 
The Target Termlnation column is the beginning of liquidation of the fund, however, some funds may be extended for an additional two or three years. 

Market 
Value 

131,166,000 
23,037,000 
17,545,900 
59,259,000 
23,402,000 
26,191,000 
28,808,000 

3,606,000 
48,343,000 

815,000 
39,090,000 
61,758,000 
48,256,000 

-
5,750,000 

10,732,000 
21,002,000 
41,618,000 
14464000 

604,842,000 
437,345,000 

1,042,187,000 

Market 
Value 
22,996,000 
15000,000 

3799& 000 
65,163,000 

103,159,000 

Market 
Value 
21,789,000 

1,165,000 
36,317000 

59271 000 
91,909,000 

151,180,000 

%of Outstanding 
Total Asset Commitment 

1.89% 95,573,000 
0.33% 12,637,000 
0.25% 22,664,000 
0.85% 18,249,000 
0.34% 7,911,000 
0.38% 17,330,000 
0.41% 40,846,000 
0.05% 46,394,000 
0.70% 154,633,000 
0.01% 0 
0.56% 0 
0.89% 0 
0.69% 3,978,000 
0.00% 0 
0.08% 0 
0.15% 767,000 i 

0.30% 0 
0.60% 1,479,000 
0.21% 14884000 
8.71% ___ '--__ 43'l,~45,()()()_ 

%of Outstanding ! 

Total Asset Commitment 
0.33% 5,163,000 
0.22% 6Q,000,OOO I 
0.55% 65,163,000 

%of Oubltanding 
Total Asset Commitment 

0.31% 28,000,000 
0.02% 23,835,000 
0.52% 40.074000 
0.85% 91,909.000 













1 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date:   March 9, 2016 
 
To:   CCCERA Board of Retirement 
 
From:   Timothy Price, Chief Investment Officer  

Chih-chi Chu, Jeff Youngman, Investment Analysts 
 
Subject:  Adams Street Venture Innovation Fund 
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation 
 
We recommend that CCCERA make a capital commitment of $75 million to Adams Street 
Venture Innovation Fund (ASVIF), subject to satisfactory on-site due diligence and legal review.   
 
ASVIF is a dedicated offering of Adam Street’s preferred venture capital relationships.  The fund 
will invest in the same venture capital funds that are expected to be included in the firm’s 
global fund of funds offerings for 2016-2018.  Adams Street is one of the earliest institutional 
venture capital investors with a track record dating back in 1972.  In the past, these venture 
capital funds were mostly allocated to the Adams Street’s global fund programs.  In recent 
years, Adams Street has raised successively smaller global fund of funds offerings, reflecting the 
trend among many institutional investors away from the fund of funds business model.  The 
percentage allocation to venture capital within these diversified funds has remained largely 
consistent, but the dollar allocation levels has declined with overall global fund size. Most 
venture capital funds pre-authorize dollar commitments to their long-term partners based upon 
the long-term relationship. Adams Street is understandably reluctant to cede their access to 
this roster of venture capital relationships by not taking their pro-rata share of future funds, 
hence creating this opportunity to invest in a dedicated pool of high quality venture capital 
funds with more favorable economics than those of similar caliber venture capital fund-of-
funds in the market. 
 
CCCERA has a long history with Adams Street.  Over the past few years CCCERA has not 
increased its commitment to Adams Street’s global program to reflect CCCERA’s growing 
private equity allocation; instead CCCERA chose a more targeted approach such as allocating 
commitments to Adams Street’s dedicated secondary funds when they were available and 



2 

attractive after the financial crisis.  We view ASVIF as another opportunity to further enhance 
CCCERA’s risk/return profile of the investment pool managed by Adams Street.  ASVIF’s target 
annual net return is 15-20%.  Below is the summary of CCCERA’s investments managed by 
Adams Street: 
 

Program Inception  COMMITMENT AMOUNT % INVESTED OR RESERVED Net IRR 

Global Fund of Funds 
(multiple vintages) 

Mar-96 $270,000,000 93% 10.59% 

Secondary Funds 
(II&V) 

Jan-09   $70,000,000 76% 14.80% 

 
 
Venture Capital Overview  
 
Venture capital has spawned many industries, including semi-conductors, software, e-
commerce, biotech, and social networking. Along the way it has also produced many successful 
companies, such as Intel, Microsoft, Apple, Google, Amazon, Genentech, Tesla, and Facebook, 
to name a few.  In today’s low growth environment, venture capital is arguably the most 
prominent area for investors to seek growth, propelled by the quest to own the next generation 
of breakthrough technologies and to benefit from the disruption of legacy business models.  
Some of the widely talked-about innovation topics currently include self-driving cars, 
nanotechnology, robotics application, FinTech (use of technology to make financial services 
more efficient), etc.  All of these are financed primarily by venture capital.  
 
With the expectation of outsize returns comes the reality that many venture-backed companies 
will fail.  Companies that don’t evolve, or adopt the wrong technologies are often abandoned 
by their customers quickly and punished severely in the capital markets.  Venture capital is the 
land of a few large successes and many small failures.  This model rewards investing early 
during the companies’ lifecycle when the product or model isn’t proven and therefore the 
company valuation is less established.   
 
For entrepreneurs seeking venture capital funding, there is a natural tendency to reach out to 
investors with whom they have previously worked or to investors who have access to the 
boards or senior management of the established companies in their respective industries.  
When fundraising, entrepreneurs seek knowledge, experience, and access to the industry more 
than just money.  Because there is a finite pool of investors who have the combination of 
knowledge, experience, access, and pocket, successful investment results are more 
concentrated within that finite pool of investors.  Having said that, venture capital is also a rare 
industry that rewards failures.  People are not judged by whether they failed, but by what they 
learned from the failures so they can make the next venture a success.  Therefore, although 
successful investors are often critical and selective on the entrepreneurs they choose to work 
with, they are curious and open-minded on the ideas they see or hear.   
 

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Financial_services


3 

On a global scale, the United States is the largest venture capital market, followed by China, 
India, Europe, and Israel.  And within the United States, Silicon Valley dominates all other 
regions.  Below is a recent analysis by CB INSIGHTS on the geographic distribution of venture 
capital activity in the United States. 
 

 
 
 
 
ASVIF Investment Strategy  
 
ASVIF will be run out of Adams Street’s Silicon Valley office, on Sand Hill Road in Menlo Park.  It 
intends to invest in 10 to 20 venture funds over the next two to three years.  Adams Street 
established the Menlo Park office in 2006 in order to have more direct access to GP relationship 
and venture capital deal flow.  ASVIF’s pipeline of venture capital funds includes high caliber 
GPs with the combination of knowledge, experience, access, and capital.   
 
One of the distinguishing characteristics of ASVIF is the fund’s willingness to engage in due 
diligence on new funds started by seasoned venture partners.  Just as ASVIF evaluates its 
underlying GP’s willingness and ability to source early stage companies, CCCERA staff focused 
on ASVIF’s willingness and ability to source newer funds.  In the venture capital industry, high 
profile funds typically raise more money, but it’s often the individual partners who have the 
knowledge, experience, and access.  Many successful partners start out their own funds to be 
more specialized in sub-industry, and to better align their personal interests to the success of 
their investments.  We believe ASVIF’s blended approach of securing long-term relationships 
while also backing new funds (with seasoned partners) can capture more alpha than re-ups 
with the old funds.   
 
 



4 

 
 
Other features of ASVIF’s investment strategy include:   
 

• Time diversification:  By pacing its investments over 10 – 12 quarters, ASVIF can 
construct its portfolio to weather market cycles while taking advantage of long term 
secular trends.   
 

• Early focus: 60 – 70% of ASVIF’s investments will be in the funds that target early stage 
companies.  By nature of this focus on early stage companies, ASVIF will be subject less 
to valuation volatility often concerned in the venture capital market.   
 

• Consistency: ASVIF constructs its portfolio with similar amounts of investment in each 
fund regardless of fund size.  This equal-weighted method has been Adams Street’s key 
to success in its primary funds investment program.  By equal-weighing its investments, 
ASVIF reduces the risk of losing big with mega funds and increases the chance of more 
significant contributions from the small funds.     
 

• Geographic expansion: Although Silicon Valley remains the most powerful profits engine 
in venture capital within United States, it does not preclude ASVIF to seek prominent 
and unique opportunities overseas. ASVIF can invest up to 20 -30% of the fund outside 
United States.                
 
 

  



5 

Overview of Adams Street and ASVIF Investment Team 
 
Adams Street Partners’ legacy started at First National Bank of Chicago in 1972, focusing on 
venture capital investments.  Later, Brinson Partners acquired the interests from First National 
Bank of Chicago.  In 1995 Brinson Partners combined with Swiss Bank Corporation’s investment 
management business (later become UBS AG).  Adams Street was formed in 2001, comprised of 
the Brinson Partners’ private equity group.  Today Adams Street is 100% employee owned with 
AUM over $27 billion.   
 
Although Adams Street is raising smaller flagship global funds, we have tracked the firm’s 
growing pool of investment talent.   The current head of investments is Jeff Diehl who was 
promoted within Adams Street and leads the direct investment program.  The head of the 
Primary Fund Investments is Kelly Meldrum who is overseeing ASVIF.  The key ASVIF investment 
personnel are highlighted below:    
 

• Kelly Meldrum, CFA, is Head of Primary Investments at Adams Street.  Kelly opened 
Adams Street’s Menlo Park office in 2006 and is based there.  Before joining Adams 
Street in 2005 Kelly was Director of Private Equity for Hewlett Foundation.  Prior to that 
she was with HP, managing its venture capital partnership interests.  Kelly started her 
career at the venture capital group in Morgan Stanley.  As seen throughout her career 
Kelly has been cultivating relationships in the venture capital industry, building roaster of 
quality portfolios and putting together capable teams to manage them.  Kelly received 
her BS from Bentley College.   
 

• Tom Gladden is a partner at Adams Street based in Chicago.  Tom specializes in venture 
and growth capital fund investments.  Prior to joining Adams Street in 2002, Tom worked 
at Duke Management Company.  Prior to that he was the Executive Director of the Youth 
and Family Resource Center in Chicago, responsible for financial, administrative, and 
operations.  He also worked at APM Incorporated where he managed task forces in 
hospitals throughout the country.  Tom has a BA from Dartmouth College and MS from 
University of Chicago.   
       

• Saguna Malhotra is a partner at Adams Street based in Menlo Park.  Prior to joining 
Adams Street she was the Managing Director of Private Equity at Stanford Management 
Company where she oversaw $6 billion of private equity portfolio.  She was also a 
member of the investment committee making decisions for Stanford’s broader 
investment program.  Saguna also started her career at Morgan Stanley, in its Financial 
Sponsors Group.  Prior to joining Adams Street Saguna had known Kelly for 10 years.  
Saguna has a BS from University of Pennsylvania.   

 
• Michael Taylor is a senior associate based in Menlo Park.  He joined Adams Street in 

2012.  Mike started his career in Investment Banking at Bank of America Merrill Lynch.   
 

 
 



6 

Track Record Review  
 
CCCERA started its investment program with Brinson Partners (Adams Street’s predecessor) in 
1996, and added Adams Street’s dedicated secondary fund program in 2009 when there was 
massive selling of partnerships to the secondary market due to liquidity squeeze caused by the 
the great financial crisis.  The combined since-inception net IRR of 10.9% has outperformed its 
PME (Public Market Equivalent), MSCI World Total Return, by more than 400 bps.  Below is the 
summary table of CCCERA’s Adams Street investment program, as of September 30, 2015: 
 
CCCERA Level – Key Program Metrics 

Program Subscription Drawn Market Value Distribution Net IRR Multiple 
 
Partnership 

 
$270 

 
$192 

 
$124 

 
$163 

 
10.6% 

 
1.5x 

Secondary   $70   $50   $36   $31 14.8% 1.3x 
 
Total 

 
$340 

 
$242 

 
$160 

 
$194 

 
10.9% 

 
1.5x 

 Number in millions, source: CCCERA quarterly report from Adams Street 
 
 
Adams Street’s track record in venture capital is also strong (see chart below).  We should note 
again that venture capital investing is subject to binary outcomes and boom/bust cycles.  We 
believe that 2015 was likely a peak in venture capital exits and valuations before we enter into 
another period of retrenchment 
 
 

 
 
 
 

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

1 - Year 3- Year 5 - Year 10 - Year Since Inception
(1979)

Net IRR of Adams Street Primary Venture 
Funds v. Public Market Equivalent

Adams Street Venture Capital Primary PME (NASDAQ)



7 

Adams Street also provided the peer rankings (Burgiss Venture Net IRR Universe) of the likely 
GPs to be included in ASVIF, shown below:   
 

 
 
 
Staff asked Adams Street to run risk/return simulations over two scenarios: CCCERA’s Adams 
Street program both with and without a $75mm commitment to ASVIF. Below is the 
comparison between CCCERA’s current Adams Street Program (ASP) and the new Adams Street 
Program with a $75 million commitment to ASVIF: 

 
 
The simulated addition would be expected to expand the range of potential outcomes, but 
increase the expected median return without the corresponding shift to the left side (higher 
probability of lower returns).   
 
 
 
 
 

0

5

10

15

20

25

1.35 1.6 1.85 2.1 2.35 2.6 2.85

Fr
eq

ue
nc

y 
(%

)

Net Investment Multiple (x)

Chart: Simulated Portfolio Investment Multiple (x)

Current ASP Current + 75M VIF



8 

Impact of Allocation on CCCERA’s Private Equity Portfolio 
 
CCCERA’s current private equity program is generally diversified across large and small buyouts, 
energy, secondaries and venture capital. Note that Adams Street and Pathway run large 
diversified portfolios which may include more than one sub-sector, but are generally dominated 
by mid-large buyout funds. The current composition of CCCERA’s private equity program is 
shown in the chart below (note that this includes current market value of investments and 
uncalled capital): 

 
 
The venture capital allocation is small and shrinking as the Bay Area Equity Funds I & II (vintages 
2004 and 2009, respectively) and Paladin III (vintage 2007) are in the distribution phase of their 
fund lives. Without making new commitments to venture capital, CCCERA’s exposure will 
diminish in the coming years (the Bay Area Equity Funds and Paladin are expected to liquidate 
in 2017).  A $75 million allocation to the Adams Street Venture Innovation Fund will increase 
the venture allocation to 10%, and reduce the energy, small buyout and large buyout 
allocations by 1%, 2% and 3%, respectively. This is shown in the chart below: 
 

 

Large Buyout
46%

Venture 4%

Energy
14%

Secondaries 7%

Small Buyout
30%

Current Private Equity Program

Large Buyout
43%

Venture 10%

Energy
13%

Secondaries 7%

Small Buyout
28%

Prospective Private Equity Program



9 

CCCERA Commitment Availability for Private Equity Investments 
 
Based on CCCERA’s fund value of $6.95 billion as of January 31, 2016, a 10% target allocation to 
alternative investments is $695 million.  CCCERA’s alternative investments market value as of 
January 31, 2016 was approximately $605 million. Outstanding commitments to alternative 
investments, which have not yet been drawn, totaled $487 million. The combination of market 
values and outstanding commitments is $1.09 billion.  
 
Hitting a specific target allocation for private equity is challenging due to the capital call and 
distribution cycle. There is significant lag time in alternative investments between 
commitments and actual investments, while partnership commitments made in the early years 
start to make distributions, which decreases the allocation to alternative investments.   
Taking into account CCCERA’s asset value, capital deployment lag time and distribution 
characteristics of investing in private equity, CCCERA needs to over-commit relative to the 
desired target of 10% ($695 million) in alternative investments.  Using an estimate for over-
commitment of 100% in this analysis, the total amount available for CCCERA to commit to 
alternative investments is $298 million. These figures are detailed below: 
 

 
 
CCCERA has recently adopted a new asset allocation, which calls for a move from a 10% target 
allocation to a new 17% target allocation to private equity going forward.  A $75 million 
investment in ASVIF is a strong start with a known partner towards building into the larger 
private equity allocation approved under the FFP structure, while also reserving flexibility for 
the private equity program pending an implementation plan to be approved by the Board in the 
near future.  
 
It should also be noted that if CCCERA does not make any new allocations to venture capital, 
the fund will have no exposure to this area of private equity after the Bay Area Equity Funds 
and Paladin dissolve in 2017-19. In light of this, Staff desires to maintain vintage year 
diversification and market exposure to the asset class without materially over or 
underweighting the asset class pending the forthcoming implementation plan. An allocation of 
$75 million accomplishes these goals. 
 
 

Value (Millions)
CCCERA Total Fund $6,948
     as of 1/31/2016
Private Equity @ 10% $695

Private Equity Target $695
    less Closed End Investments $605
    less Commitments $487
Available to Commit -$397
    plus 100% Over-Commitment $695

Estimated Available to Commit $298



10 

 
Risks of Investing in ASVIF 
 
Outlined below are the most relevant risks associated to this investment: 
 
Valuation - Equity markets (both private and public) appear to be coming off a high point in 
valuations in 2015. Volatility in the public markets may impact the private equity market, both 
in the prospects of venture-backed firms exiting via the IPO market as well as the ability of 
strategic acquirers to use their stock as currency for acquisitions. We believe the pullback in 
valuations is creating a better opportunity to make new venture capital commitments over the 
next several years, but we may be early.  
 
Diversification - The Adams Street Venture Innovation Fund will primarily target funds that 
focus on the technology sector. This is not uncommon for venture capital funds, however it is a 
concentrated industry risk. Additionally, the fund will be targeting the bulk of its investments in 
the United States (expected 70%-80% of investments). Again, this is not uncommon for venture 
funds.  
 
The portfolio of ASVIF will be equal-weighted across the underlying funds, which builds in some 
diversification across fund sponsors, and the underlying funds will be diversified across the 
stage of investment including seed, early, and to a lesser extent later stage and growth 
investments.  
 
Key Person Risk - Venture capital, more than most any other asset class, relies heavily on 
relationships between the investor, general partners, and the target investment (recipient of 
the equity). In the event that Kelly Meldrum is unable to perform her duties as it relates to the 
Adams Street Venture Innovation Fund, the relationships that drive the fund’s operations could 
also be at risk.  
 
Venture Capital Batting Average - The classic venture capital heuristic is that every single major 
win has to cover nine material losses. Though the Adams Street Venture Innovation Fund will 
be diversified across fund sponsors and vintage years, venture capital is a volatile asset class 
with generally binary outcomes.  
 



11 

Summary of Key Terms of Adams Street Venture Innovation Fund  
 
 
The Fund:  Adams Street Venture Innovation Fund LP 
 
Fund Size:  $150mm 
 
GP Commitment: No less than 2% 
 
Investment Focus: The Fund will invest in private equity funds, creating a portfolio of 

primary investments focused on the venture capital subclass, on a 
global basis.   

 
Investment Period: Up to five years following the commencement date (though 

expected to be two to three years) 
 
Fund Term: 12 years following the commencement date (subject to extensions 

of up to three successive one-year periods at the discretion of the 
GP) 

 
Guideline: No more than 15% in single underlying investment 
 
Fees: The average annual management fee is expected to be 

approximately 68bps (the expected average annual management 
fee after 10% CCCERA relationship discount, please see 
explanation on the following page) 

 
Carry: No GP carry for this fund 
 



12 

Estimated Fee Schedule 
 
Adams Street will not charge carried interest on the Venture Innovation Fund, only a 
management fee. Because of this, we have not outlined our typical example of cash flows for 
private investments.  Below is the estimated fee schedule of a $75 million investment in ASVIF: 
 
 

Year 
Management 

Fee 
Management 

Fee After 

  (bps) ($) 
10% 

Discount 
1* 110.0 $232,031 $208,828 
2* 110.0 $577,500 $519,750 
3* 110.0 $745,594 $671,034 
4 110.0 $825,000 $742,500 
5 110.0 $825,000 $742,500 
6 110.0 $825,000 $742,500 
7 110.0 $825,000 $742,500 

8# 99.0 $742,500 $668,250 
9# 88.0 $660,000 $594,000 

10# 77.0 $577,500 $519,750 
11# 66.0 $495,000 $445,500 
12# 55.0 $412,500 $371,250 
13# 44.0 $330,000 $297,000 
14# 33.0 $247,500 $222,750 
15# 22.0 $165,000 $148,500 

Total 
Fees  $8,485,125 $7,636,613 
Average Annual Fee ($) $565,675 $509,108 
Average Annual Fee (bps) 0.75% 0.68% 
*Fees in years 1-3 will be based on actual amounts committed at the end of each quarter. Assuming 40% 

is invested by the end of year 1, 80% is invested by the end of year 2 and 100% is invested by the end of year 3 

Adams Street estimates management fees will equate to 28.125%, 70% and 90.375% of full year fees 

in years 1 through 3, respectively.  

 

# Fees are reduced 10% per year beginning in year 8 as follows: 

Year 8 - fees are 90% of full year fees 
Year 9 - fees are 80% of full year fees 

Year 10 - fees are 70% of full year fees 

etc.  

 
 
 
 



 

 

 

Memorandum 
 

To: Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association 

From: Manager Research Group 

Date: February 29, 2016 

RE: Opinion on proposed investment in the ASP Venture Innovation Fund 

 
Executive Summary 
It is our view that a diversified private equity portfolio includes an allocation to Venture Capital 
(“VC”).  VC can be a driver of economic growth, having produced leading technology, disruptive 
business models, and some of the most recognizable companies in recent history.  The asset class 
is generally high risk/reward with a few investments the driving total portfolio returns.  Against 
this backdrop, select leading VC managers seem capable of consistently generating above average 
returns.  These persistent return managers are exceedingly difficult to access and limited partner 
(“LP”) allocations are often the results of long historical relationships. 

 

Adams Street Partners, LLC (“ASP”), a $27 billion fund-of-funds manager with a 40+year history of 
investing in the Venture Capital market, is seeking $150 million in limited partner commitments 
to the ASP Fund.  The proposed investment in the ASP Venture Innovation Fund LP (the “ASP 
Fund”) appears to provide CCCERA with access to a selection of these persistent return managers.  
Based on our review of the Staff’s research, we do not see any significant issues with their 
diligence on the investment opportunity in general and the strategy in particular. 

 
Diligence Performed 
At the client’s request, we performed an initial review of the ASP Fund.  This included a review of 
the offering materials, an in-person meeting with the manager, as well as a review of the Staff’s 
Investment Memorandum. 
 
The Market Opportunity 
Venture Capital as an asset class has performed strongly over the last 1, 3, and 5 years generating 
an average IRR of 20.5%, 17.0% and 14.7% respectively1.  However, VC valuations are elevated 
and the softness of the overall economic environment, including limited recent IPO activity, may 
point toward lower average returns going forward.  Within the VC landscape, early-stage and 
growth type investments may be more insulated from a market correction.  Early stage 

                                                
1 Preqin Private Equity Horizon IRRs as at 6/30/15. 



2 
 

investments may be capable of generating positive returns in a low-growth environment whereas 
larger and later stage investment may rely on difficult to achieve valuations and assumptions. 

While the market environment may generally inform investment decisions, it is difficult to time a 
private market investment decision.  Venture Capital funds invest over 3-5 years and exit those 
investments in years 3-15.  The investment environment will likely change significantly over the 
course of a fund’s life.  In the VC market, top quartile managers seem capable of generating 
consistent above average returns2.  These leading VC funds are often oversubscribed, difficult to 
access, and LP allocations are the result of nurturing long relationships with the managers.  
Investors with access to these persistent return managers may be capable of generating returns 
above the market average.  

 

The Offering 
ASP is seeking $150 million in limited partner commitments to the ASP Fund.  The ASP Fund looks 
to make 10-20 primary commitments to the Venture Capital subclass, on a global basis.  ASP 
targets a mix of stages with 60-70% of the ASP Funds capital earmarked for early stage 
investments. 
 
Over its 40+ years in the market, ASP has secured meaningful allocations to leading VC managers.  
Historically these allocations were used by the ASP flagship fund and other globally diversified 
ASP fund-of-funds vehicles.  Investor interest in the diversified fund-of-funds model has waned 
and the ASP diversified funds are generally smaller today than they were in the past.  Portfolio 
construction limitations in these smaller diversified funds limits the size of individual VC 
commitments.  Rather than release a portion of these allocations back to the VC manager, ASP 
has elected to raise the ASP Fund to maintain their historical investment pace and dollar 
allocations to the VC space. During the investment period, the ASP Fund will generally make VC 
commitments pro-rata with the global diversified fund-of-funds.  Additionally, the fee structure 
of the ASP Fund is favorable to that of other dedicated VC fund-of-funds mangers in market. 
 
Conclusion 
While we note that VC valuations are elevated and the recent success of the asset class may be 
difficult to replicate in the coming years, market timing is challenging and a diversified Private 
Equity includes a VC allocation. If an investor decides to participate in the VC asset class, a 
commitment to the Fund seems reasonable.  In our opinion, Staff performed a logical review of 
the opportunity set and their decision to recommend the Fund is based on a thorough analysis of 
the Fund, ASP, and the investment team. 

 

                                                
2 Private Equity Performance: Returns, Persistence and Capital Flows. Steve Kaplan and Antoinette Schoar.  



Eff. 3.9.16

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

    1 2  1 2 3 4 5 6   1 2 3 4 C

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 B 11 12 13 C C C B 10 11 12

10 11 12 B 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 26 27 20 CII CII CII SB 25 26

24 25 26 27 SB 29 30 28 29      27 28 29 30 31   

31       

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

    1 2 1 2 3 SB 5 6 7    1 2 3 4

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 8 9 S S S S 14 5 6 7 B 9 10 11

10 11 12 B 14 15 16 N N N N N 20 21 12 13 14 15 16 17 18

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 22 23 24 26 27 28 19 20 21 B 23 24 25

24 25 26 W W W W 29 30 31     26 27 28 29 30   

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

    1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 P P P 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

10 11 12 B 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 B 15 16 17

PPI PPI PPI PPI SB 22 23 21 22 23 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

24 25 26 B 28 29 30 28 29 30 31    25 26 27 CII CII 30  

31       

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

     1   1 SB 3 4 5 1 2 3

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 S S S 11 I 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

9 10 11 B 13 14 15 I I I I 17 18 19 11 12 13 B 15 16 17

16 17 18 19 SB 21 22 20 21 Q 23 24 25 26 18 19 20 21 22 23 24

23 24 25 B 27 28 29 27 28 29 30 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

30 31      

B Board Meeting CII CII P Pepperdine University: Principles of Pension Management

Q Quarterly Meeting C CALAPRS PPI SACRS: Public Pension Investment Management

SB Special Board Meeting N NCPERS W Wharton: Portfolio Concepts and Management

S SACRS I IFEBP

CCCERA Board Meetings 2016

January February March

April May June

July August September

H - Independence Day H - Labor Day

October November December

H - Veterans Day

H - Thanksgiving
H - Christmas Day Observed

H - New Year's Day

H - Martin Luther King Jr. Day
H - Presidents' Day

H - Memorial Day

B

P

S

B

SB/Q

B

Q

B

B
Q


	agenda 3.9.16
	Item 3
	Item 4
	Item 9
	Page 2

	Item 11
	ASVI-Final GS (002)
	To:   CCCERA Board of Retirement

	ASP Venture Innovation FUnd CCCERA Opinion Memo 2 29 16

	Item 12



